
 

 
 

July 25, 2021 
City of Alameda Planning Board  
2263 Santa Clara Avenue, Room 190 
Alameda, CA 94501 
 
Subject: Proposed revisions to Second Draft Alameda General Plan (Item 7-B on Planning Board’s 
7-26-21 agenda) - -AAPS comments  
 
Dear Planning Board members, 
 
The Alameda Architectural Preservation Society (AAPS) would like to thank the Planning Board, staff 
and the consultants for the July 13 revisions, which respond to many of our previous comments, notably 
deleting the residential density provisions from the land-use classifications. The intent is to address 
residential density as part of the Housing Element and related zoning amendments, since residential 
densities are closely related to Alameda’s Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) and, as part of 
the Housing Element, can be more logically finalized when Alameda‘s RHNA (now under appeal) is 
definitively determined. 
 
However, there are still some loose ends: 
 

1. Reduce the maximum Medium Density Residential floor area ratio (FAR) from the proposed 
2.4 to 1.5. A 2.4 FAR is roughly equivalent to a five story building with 50% lot coverage, which 
is too tall for the Medium Density Residential Area and could be even taller with a density bonus 
project. Alternatively, omit FAR from the land use element and consider it instead in the Housing 
Element and/or zoning amendments along with residential density and other intensity parameters. 

 
2. Revise LU – 2f, LU – 16, LU – 16a, CC – 10 and CC – 10a so that their provisions for multi-

family housing and higher densities are addressed as part of the Housing Element and 
Multifamily Overlay Zone. As drafted, these provisions are inconsistent with the Land-Use 
Element’s revised land-use classifications that delete residential density and shift the residential 
density analysis to the Housing Element. The provisions also conflict with Article 26 and could 
invite developer litigation arguing for higher density than permitted by the zoning ordinance and 
Article 26, since state law provides that if there is a conflict between the General Plan and zoning, 
the General Plan controls. Making it clear that these provisions are dependent on the Housing 
Element and Multifamily Overlay Zone (which are designed to implement state-mandated 
exceptions to Article 26) will eliminate this inconsistency and minimize the possibility of 
litigation.  
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For example, LU-16 and LU-16a could be revised to read as follows (the revisions are based on 
the previously revised text in the July 13 proposed revisions): 

 
LU-16 Climate-Friendly, Transit-Oriented Mixed-Use Development. As part of the 
Housing Element and application of the Multi-Family Overlay Zone, Ppermit higher-
density, multi-family and mixed-use development on sites within walking distance of 
commercial and transit-rich areas to reduce automobile dependence, automobile 
congestion, greenhouse gas emissions, and energy use; provide for affordable housing; 
make efficient use of land; and support climate friendly modes of transportation, such as 
walking, bicycling, and transit use. (See also Policies LU-16, LU-33, LU-34, CC-3, CC-10, 
ME-6, ME-17, ME-18, ME-21, HE-5, HE-10 and HE-11).  
 
Actions:  

a. Transit-Oriented Zoning. To Support additional ferry service, bus services, and 
future rail service in Alameda by amending the zoning code through the Housing 
Element and application of the Multi-Family Overlay Zone, to allow for higher-
density, mixed-use, multi-family housing in transit-rich locations. (See Where are 
the Transit Rich Locations in Alameda Spotlight)  

 
Similar adjustments may be needed to other General Plan text. 

 
In addition, as drafted, CC-10a is too open ended and subject to interpretation. What is meant by 
“near” (transit stops) and how high are “higher density and FAR”, especially if existing densities 
are already relatively high. We continue to question the wisdom of promoting permanent land-use 
changes based on ephemeral and easily changed transit facilities such as bus lines. 

 
3. Delete Section 1.2’s reference to the 1968 Fair Housing Act relative to Article 26. This 

reference (added in the June 29 proposed revisions) implies that Article 26 was a response to the 
Fair Housing Act, when in fact Article 26 was a response to out of control growth and was similar 
to citizen-generated growth management efforts in other communities, such as Berkeley‘s 1973 
neighborhood preservation ordinance and a series of measures in San Francisco during the 1970s 
and 1980s. The leadership of these efforts included civil rights advocates and other progressive 
activists from that time, which makes the suggestion that these efforts were responses to the Fair 
Housing Act far-fetched. We were surprised that this reference was retained in the General Plan 
after Board Member Curtis’s very compelling rebuke of the reference at the Planning Board‘s July 
12 meeting. 

 
4. Retain important existing General Plan provisions.  The following existing General Plan 

provisions are not included or only partially included in the new Plan and should be retained with 
minimal modifications. 

 
Implementing Policies: Architectural Resources  

 
3.3.i Preserve all City-owned buildings and other facilities of architectural, 
historical or aesthetic merit. Prepare a list of these facilities and develop an 
Historic Facilities Management Plan that provides procedures for preserving their 
character-defining elements, including significant interior features and furnishings. 
Include in the Management Plan design guidelines or standards and a long-term 
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program to restore significant character-defining elements which have been 
altered.  

 
The first sentence is retained in the draft Plan as Action LU-25a, but the remaining 
language should also be retained, since it provides strategies to implement the first 
sentence and is much more of a true action statement than the first sentence. 

 
3.3.j Encourage owners of poorly remodeled but potentially attractive older 
buildings to restore the exterior of these buildings to their original appearance. 
Provide lists of altered buildings which present special design opportunities and 
make the lists widely available. Develop financial and design assistance programs 
to promote such restoration. 

 
Although the last sentence is reflected in Action LU-25e’s financial assistance and design 
assistance proposals, the rest of 3.3.j is more proactive and is at least equally important. 

 
We have been repeatedly recommending retention of these provisions because they provide good 
roadmaps for ensuring preservation of city-owned properties and promoting restoration of poorly 
remodeled but potentially attractive privately owned buildings and should be noncontroversial. 
We are therefore surprised that they have still not been retained and assume that this is just an 
oversight. 

 
5. Verify that all changes from the June 29 Proposed Revisions are included. For example the 

residential density deletions from the Land Use Classifications are not indicated. We did not try to 
thoroughly compare the revisions to the March 2021 draft and 6-29-21 revisions so there may be 
other changes that are not reflected in the redlines. Can staff and/or the consultants double 
check the changes and try to make sure that they are all reflected in the revision? 

 
The attached marked up pages from the proposed revisions reflect some of the above comments as well as 
additional comments. 
 
Thank you for the ongoing opportunities to comment. Please contact me at (510) 523-0411 or 
cbuckleyAICP@att.net if you would like to discuss these comments. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Christopher Buckley, Chair 
Preservation Action Committee 
Alameda Architectural Preservation Society 
 
Attachment: Marked up pages from the July 13 proposed revisions to the March 2021 draft General Plan 
 
cc: Mayor and City Councilmembers (by electronic transmission) 

Andrew Thomas and Allen Tai, Planning, Building and Transportation Department (by electronic 
transmission) 

    AAPS Board and Preservation Action Committee (by electronic transmission) 
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